
 
NOTICE 

 
OF 

 
MEETING 

 

OUTBREAK ENGAGEMENT BOARD 
 

will meet on 

 
MONDAY, 17TH MAY, 2021 

 
At 2.30 pm 

 
by 
 

VIRTUAL MEETING - ONLINE ACCESS ON RBWM YOUTUBE  

 
 

TO: MEMBERS OF THE OUTBREAK ENGAGEMENT BOARD 
 
HILARY HALL - DIRECTOR OF ADULTS, HEALTH AND COMMISSIONING 
(CHAIRMAN) 
TRACY HENDREN – HEAD OF HOUSING AND ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH 
ANNA RICHARDS – CONSULTANT IN PUBLIC HEALTH 
DAVID SCOTT – HEAD OF COMMUNITIES 
KEVIN MCDANIEL – DIRECTOR OF CHILDREN’S SERVICES 
LOUISA DEAN – COMMUNICATIONS AND MARKETING MANAGER 
COUNCILLOR STUART CARROLL 
COUNCILLOR HELEN PRICE 
COUNCILLOR SIMON WERNER 

 
 

Karen Shepherd – Head of Governance - Issued: 7th May 2021 
 
Members of the Press and Public are welcome to attend Part I of this meeting. The agenda is available on the Council’s 

web site at www.rbwm.gov.uk or contact the Panel Administrator Mark Beeley mark.beeley@rbwm.gov.uk 

 
 

Recording of Meetings – In line with the council’s commitment to transparency the Part I (public) section of the virtual 

meeting will be streamed live and recorded via Zoom. By participating in the meeting by audio and/or video, you are 
giving consent to being recorded and acknowledge that the recording will be in the public domain. If you have any 

questions regarding the council’s policy, please speak to Democratic Services or Legal representative at the meeting. 

Public Document Pack

https://www.youtube.com/user/WindsorMaidenhead/videos
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/


 

 

AGENDA 
 

PART I 
ITEM SUBJECT PAGE 

NO 
 

1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
To receive any apologies for absence. 

  

- 
 

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
To receive any declarations of interest. 

  

5 - 6 
 

3.   MINUTES 
 
To consider the minutes of the meeting held on 19th April 2021. 

  

7 - 12 
 

4.   QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC 
 
To consider any questions submitted to the Board. 

  

- 
 

5.   LATEST LOCAL POSITION 
 
To hear from the Consultant in Public Health. 

  

Verbal 
Report 

 

6.   UPDATE ON HIGH RISK SETTINGS 
 
To hear from the Director of Children’s Services. 

  

Verbal 
Report 

 

7.   COMMUNICATIONS AND ENGAGEMENT ACTIVITY 
 
To hear from the Communications and Marketing Manager. 

  

Verbal 
Report 

 

8.   ENFORCEMENT AND COMPLIANCE ACTIVITY 
 
To hear from the Head of Housing and Environmental Health. 

  

Verbal 
Report 

 

9.   UPDATE ON THE VACCINATION PROGRAMME 
 
To hear from the Executive Managing Director (CCG). 

  

Verbal 
Report 

 

10.   ANY OTHER BUSINESS 
 
To consider any other business. 

  

- 
 

11.   FUTURE MEETING DATES 
 
All at 2.30pm: 

 Monday 21 June 2021 

 Monday 19 July 2021 

 Monday 16 August 2021 

 Monday 20 September 2021 

- 
 



 

 

 Monday 18 October 2021 

 Monday 15 November 2021 

 Monday 20 December 2021 

  
 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
MEMBERS’ GUIDE TO DECLARING INTERESTS IN MEETINGS  

 
Disclosure at Meetings 
 
If a Member has not disclosed an interest in their Register of Interests, they must make the declaration of 
interest at the beginning of the meeting, or as soon as they are aware that they have a DPI or Prejudicial 
Interest. If a Member has already disclosed the interest in their Register of Interests they are still required to 
disclose this in the meeting if it relates to the matter being discussed.   
 
A member with a DPI or Prejudicial Interest may make representations at the start of the item but must not 
take part in the discussion or vote at a meeting. The speaking time allocated for Members to make 
representations is at the discretion of the Chairman of the meeting.  In order to avoid any accusations of taking 
part in the discussion or vote, after speaking, Members should move away from the panel table to a public area 
or, if they wish, leave the room.  If the interest declared has not been entered on to a Members’ Register of 
Interests, they must notify the Monitoring Officer in writing within the next 28 days following the meeting.  

 
Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs) (relating to the Member or their partner) include: 
 

 Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain. 

 Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit made in respect of any expenses occurred in 
carrying out member duties or election expenses. 

 Any contract under which goods and services are to be provided/works to be executed which has not been 
fully discharged. 

 Any beneficial interest in land within the area of the relevant authority. 

 Any licence to occupy land in the area of the relevant authority for a month or longer. 

 Any tenancy where the landlord is the relevant authority, and the tenant is a body in which the relevant 
person has a beneficial interest. 

 Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where:  
a) that body has a piece of business or land in the area of the relevant authority, and  
b) either (i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the total issued 
share capital of that body or (ii) the total nominal value of the shares of any one class belonging to the 
relevant person exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class. 

 
Any Member who is unsure if their interest falls within any of the above legal definitions should seek advice 
from the Monitoring Officer in advance of the meeting. 
 
A Member with a DPI should state in the meeting: ‘I declare a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in item x 
because xxx. As soon as we come to that item, I will leave the room/ move to the public area for the 
entire duration of the discussion and not take part in the vote.’ 
 
Or, if making representations on the item: ‘I declare a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in item x because xxx. 
As soon as we come to that item, I will make representations, then I will leave the room/ move to the 
public area for the entire duration of the discussion and not take part in the vote.’ 
 
Prejudicial Interests 
 
Any interest which a reasonable, fair minded and informed member of the public would reasonably believe is so 
significant that it harms or impairs the Member’s ability to judge the public interest in the item, i.e. a Member’s 
decision making is influenced by their interest so that they are not able to impartially consider relevant issues.   
 
A Member with a Prejudicial interest should state in the meeting: ‘I declare a Prejudicial Interest in item x 
because xxx. As soon as we come to that item, I will leave the room/ move to the public area for the 
entire duration of the discussion and not take part in the vote.’ 
 
Or, if making representations in the item: ‘I declare a Prejudicial Interest in item x because xxx. As soon as 
we come to that item, I will make representations, then I will leave the room/ move to the public area for 
the entire duration of the discussion and not take part in the vote.’ 
 
Personal interests 
 
Any other connection or association which a member of the public may reasonably think may influence a 
Member when making a decision on council matters.  
 

Members with a Personal Interest should state at the meeting: ‘I wish to declare a Personal Interest in item x 
because xxx’. As this is a Personal Interest only, I will take part in the discussion and vote on the 
matter. 5

Agenda Item 2



This page is intentionally left blank



RBWM Outbreak Engagement Board 
Monday 19th April 2021, 2.30pm, Zoom meeting 

 
 

Board Attendees: 

• Cllr Carroll 

• Cllr Price 

• Cllr Werner 

• Director of Adults, Health and Commissioning – Hilary Hall 

• Communications and Marketing Manager – Louisa Dean 

• Consultant in Public Health – Anna Richards 

• Head of Housing and Environmental Health – Tracy Hendren 

• Head of Communities – David Scott 

• Director of Children’s Services – Kevin McDaniel 

• Executive Managing Director RBWM, Clinical Commissioning Group – Caroline Farrar 

 

Additional Attendees: 

• Cllr Cannon 

• Cllr Coppinger 

• Cllr Stimson 

• Cllr Hilton 

• Cllr Bhangra 

• Cllr Shelim 

• Cllr Baldwin 

 

Apologies: 

• Managing Director – Duncan Sharkey 

• Director of Public Health - Tessa Lindfield 

 

 Item  Actions 

1.  Conflicts of 
Interest 

• Cllr Carroll is currently working for the UK Government’s 
Vaccines Taskforce as an expert adviser and infectious 
disease and vaccines specialist, Sanofi Pasteur. he 
declared his employment in the interests of full 
transparency and to highlight that should for any reason 
during the meeting, or indeed during future meetings, 
the Outbreak Engagement Board discussed anything 
directly related to Sanofi Pastuer’s business he would 
abstain from the discussion and leave the room as 
required.  

 
 
 
 

2.  Questions 
from the 
Public 

1. Please can you tell me if the new, more infectious, 
strains of the Covid-19 virus require us to distance 
ourselves more than 2 meters apart? 
The key behaviours of washing hands, wearing face 
coverings, making space and meeting in the fresh air 
help stop the spread of Covid-19.  Transmission risk for 
Covid-19 is highest where people are in close proximity 

 

7

Agenda Item 3



 Item  Actions 

(within 2 metres).  To reduce the risk of transmission, the 
government advice is to remain at least 2 metres away 
from people you do not live with or who are not in your 
support bubble.  The same advice is given for all Covid-
19 variants.   

 
2. Also, if I pass someone who is smoking or has a strong 

perfume but over 2 meters away, if they have Covid-19 
would the smoke or perfume particles carry the virus to 
me? 
Covid-19 is primarily transmitted between people through 
respiratory (droplet and aerosol) and contact routes.  It is 
unlikely that the scenario outlined in the question would 
lead to transmission of the virus between individuals.   
 

3. Why are borders being opened? Everyone has not been 
vaccinated yet!? 
Decisions about border control are made by national 
government. National guidance about coronavirus 
(Covid-19) travel is presented on the government 
website: https://www.gov.uk/guidance/travel-advice-
novel-coronavirus#fcdo-travel-advice-during-covid 

 
4. Why are women over 40 not being given the chance to 

get the Pfizer vaccine? 
The Frimley system is prioritising patients for COVID-19 
vaccination in line with the national priority groups set out 
by the Joint Committee on Vaccination and Immunisation 
(JCVI). 
 
People cannot choose which vaccine they receive. All 
available vaccines have to be approved by passing the 
Medicines & Healthcare Regulatory Agency’s (MHRA) 
tests on safety and efficacy. So, people should be 
assured that whatever vaccine they get, it will be highly 
effective and protect them from coronavirus. If a clinical 
concern exists, which mandates the use of a particular 
vaccine, the patient is asked to contact their GP practice 
when they are called for vaccination. A clinical pre-
assessment is also undertaken at all vaccination 
appointments to ensure that proceeding with the 
vaccination, including the type of vaccine to be used, is 
clinically appropriate. 

 
5. To encourage parents and teens to register the home 

testing could RBWM not encourage the NHS system to 
be improved? 
 
Thank you for your suggestions.  There is now an online 
portal for members of the public who have a query or 
wish to provide feedback or complain about any element 
of the test and trace process: https://enquiries.test-
and-trace.nhs.uk/s/ .  Could we kindly ask you to 
provide your feedback through this link. 
 

 

8

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/travel-advice-novel-coronavirus#fcdo-travel-advice-during-covid
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/travel-advice-novel-coronavirus#fcdo-travel-advice-during-covid
https://enquiries.test-and-trace.nhs.uk/s/
https://enquiries.test-and-trace.nhs.uk/s/


 Item  Actions 

3.  Local 
Position  

• 351.3 cases tested per 100,000 population which is the 
7 day moving average.  

• 1.1% of individuals tested positive. This is a decrease. 

• 25.8 cases per 100,000 population, which has also 
decreased. This is in line with the overall England 
average which is 27.9.  

• 8.2 cases per 100,00 population for 60+. This has 
increased also.  

• 39 confirmed cases in the last 7 days. 

• RBWM are currently sitting in line with the average of the 
South East and England.   

• Weekly case rate information is now available by a 5 
year age band. The heat map that is available on the 
Berkshire Public Health website enables us to see the 
levels of Covid-19 diagnosis by age group within RBWM 
which has changed over times. Darker colours show 
higher weekly case rates in people aged 10 - 14 (59 
cases per 100,000) and 55 - 59 years old (58 cases per 
100,000). Case rates have increased over the last week 
in 55 – 59 year olds.  

• From 2nd – 8th April, a number of wards have had no 
cases, the other wards that have had cases are under 5. 

• Statistically mortality rate is in line with what would be 
expected. There has been 1 death from Covid-19.  

• The number of Covid-19 patients has decreased in 
FHFT Hospitals with 1 admission on 4th April. On 6th 
April, 16 patients were in FHFT Hospitals for Covid-19 
and none of these were on mechanical ventilation. 

• The number of daily admissions for Covid-19 patients 
has decreased in Royal Berkshire Foundation Trust 
hospitals. There was 2 admissions on 4th April. 

• As of 6th April, 8 patients had bee admitted to RBFT 
Hospitals for Covid-19, 2 of these needed mechanical 
ventilation.  

• Nearly 406,000 people in Berkshire have now received a 
Covid-19 vaccination (first dose).  

• Approximately 93% of people aged 80 and over have 
now received a vaccination in Berkshire and 89% people 
aged 50 and over. 

• The Public Health team will keep a close eye on the data 
regarding the children’s age groups now that they have 
all returned to school. Within RBWM, the case rates 
have been higher amongst primary age rather than 
secondary age. Across Berkshire, it was predominantly 
in the secondary age group that had higher case rates.  

• All the schools within the Borough are being worked with 
to ensure that they have risk assessments in place and 
are being Covid-19 secure.  

• The Public Health shared team are still looking at 
numbers in the 30 – 40 age group to see whether there 
is any link to parents and schools. 

• The rates in schools are very similar to others within the 
South East. One school had an outbreak, however 
action was taken by the school to mitigate this. Both 
Kevin McDaniel and Sarah Bellars from the CCG have 

 

9



 Item  Actions 

raised the discussion around whether schools within 
RBWM could be put forward for teacher vaccination. 
NHS England have advised this is not a decision that 
can be made locally.  

Action – CF to check whether rates by ethnicity are 
available to the public. 

Action – AR to check data on schools in Primary age 
group. 

4.  Update on 
High Risk 
settings 

• Within secondary schools, families have been asked to 
keep lateral flow testing going throughout the holidays. 
They have been asked to do this twice per week. 

• The Department of Education continue to review the 
advice given to schools, in particular secondary schools, 
over the Easter period. They have suggested that face 
coverings will continue to be worn by staff and pupils.  

• Youth services will be restarting group work with young 
people this week. In the coming weeks there will be 
more interaction with young people and other services.  

• Children’s services are shifting their default position back 
to seeing all young people that are open to the service 
who are vulnerable. This will be face to face within the 
Covid-19 guidelines.  
 

• In adult social care for care homes, the picture is very 
positive.  

• There has been one positive case across 37 care homes 
this week. There have been no Covid-19 deaths.  

• There are no cases in domiciliary care agencies or 
supported living arrangements currently.   

• The vaccination rates for adult social care frontline staff 
are going well, with all second vaccinations going ahead 
for those staff.  

• There is currently a consultation on the requirement for 
all staff working in older people’s care homes to be 
vaccinated. RBWM are encouraging providers to take 
part in that consultation.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

5.  Engagement 
and Comms  

• 23rd March marked a year on since the Government 
announced the first lockdown. The comms team sent out 
messages to residents, community groups and partners 
to thank them for all the work that has been done over 
this last year. 

• With Easter, the comms team sent reminders for children 
to continue to be tested during this period. Also 
messages around the vaccine myth buster and the 
Community testing centre at Braywick were sent out. 
This was sent via social media and the newsletter which 
now has 54,000 subscribers to it.  

• Messages were sent out on the easing of restrictions, 
explaining what people could do. The team focused on 
the positives.  

• The community champion newsletter now has 150 
subscribers to it.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

10



 Item  Actions 

• Following the death of the Duke of Edinburgh, the 
messaging slightly changed. Messages were shared 
around Ramadan and Hands, Face, Space, in line with 
the national mourning.  

• Messages were also sent out advising people not to 
attend the funeral in Windsor. This was shared by other 
parties as well.  

• Over the last month, additional stay safe signs have 
been put up in schools and parks. There are new signs 
for the library vans as well.  

• The team have liaised with Head teachers to ensure that 
messages were continuing to be shared around testing 
throughout the holidays.  

• Two Maidenhead Advertiser wraps have been done. This 
goes over the front of the newspaper, reminding people 
of the community testing and Collect scheme.  

• Asian Star radio have continued to share safety 
messages, which has been done throughout.  

• With the shielding process coming to an end, there will 
be a press release on this.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6.  Enforcement 
and 
Compliance 
Activity  

• 101 inspections undertaken. All of these visits were 
compliance checks. 75 of which were broadly compliant, 
26 had minor compliances which included things like no 
hand sanitiser, social distancing, missing signage and 
QR codes not being scanned.  

• 29 service requests –  

• 20 general non covid enquiries, 3 Covid enquiries or 
advice, 5 Covid workplace measures, and 1 outbreak 
notification within a school. 

• 5 requests of premises opening 

 
 

7.  Update on 
Vaccination 
programme 

• During the last week, Cohort 10 ages 45 – 49 has been 
opened up nationally and all people are being called. 
However, vaccine supplies are still low. This Cohort 
might be open for a while. 

• Nationally, the vaccine supply continues to be a 
challenge. Second doses are proceeding according to 
plan.  

• The CCG are considering the need to move to any other 
models as activities are opened up over the summer. A 
drive through site is under consideration. Until this 
happens, members of the public should attend the site 
that they had their first vaccinations. 

• Within the guidance from the JVCI, people should have 
their second vaccination within 12 weeks of their first 
one.  

 

8.  AOB • None.   

9.  Date of next 
public 
meeting 

17th May 2021, 2.30pm, Zoom meeting 

 

 

 

11



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interest
	3 Minutes

